Call for Editorial Board Members

As you are well aware that we are a medical and health sciences publishers; publishing peer-reviewed journals and books since 2004.

We are always looking for dedicated editorial board members for our journals. If you completed your master's degree and must have at least five years experience in teaching and having good publication records in journals and books.

If you are interested to be an editorial board member of the journal; please provide your complete resume and affiliation through e-mail (i.e. info@ rfppl.co.in) or visit our website (i.e. www.rfppl.co.in) to register yourself online.

Call for Publication of Conference Papers/Abstracts

We publish pre-conference or post-conference papers and abstracts in our journals, and deliver hard copy and giving online access in a timely fashion to the authors.

For more information, please contact:

1



Free Announcements of your Conferences/Workshops/CMEs

This privilege to all Indian and other countries conferences organizing committee members to publish free announcements of your conferences/ workshops. If you are interested, please send your matter in word formats and images or pictures in JPG/JPEG/Tiff formats through e-mail attachments to sales@rfppl.co.in.

Terms & Conditions to publish free announcements:

- 1. Only conference organizers are eligible up to one full black and white page, but not applicable for the front, inside front, inside back and back cover, however, these pages are paid.
- 2. Only five pages in every issue are available for free announcements for different conferences.
- 3. This announcement will come in the next coming issue and no priority will be given.
- 4. All legal disputes subject to Delhi jurisdiction only.
- 5. The executive committee of the Red Flower Publication reserve the right to cancel, revise or modify terms and conditions any time without prior notice.

For more information, please contact: A Lal Publication-in-charge Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi – 110 091 (India) Phone: 91-11-22754205, 45796900 E-mail: info@rfppl.co.in

Win Free Institutional Subscription!

Simply fill out this form and return scanned copy through e-mail or by post to us.

We are regular subscriber of Red Flower Publication journals.

Year of first subscription_____

List of ordered journals (if you subscribed more than 5 titles, please attach separate sheet)

Ordered through

Name of the Vendor	Subscription Year	Direct/subs Yr

Name of the journal for which you wish to be free winner

Terms & Conditions to win free institutional subscription

- 1. Only institutions can participate in this scheme
- 2. In group institutions only one institution would be winner
- 3. Only five institutions will be winner for each journal
- 4. An institution will be winner only for one journal
- 5. The free subscription will be valid for one year only (i.e. 1 Jan 31 Dec)
- 6. This free subscription is not renewable, however, can be renewed with payment
- 7. Any institution can again participate after five years
- 8. All legal disputes subject to Delhi jurisdiction only
- 9. This scheme will be available to participate throughout year, but draw will be held in last week of August every year
- 10. The executive committee of the Red Flower Publication reserve the right to cancel, revise or modify terms and conditions any time without prior notice.

I confirm and certify that the above information is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Place:

Date:

Signature with Seal

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

Revised Rates for 2021 (Institutional)		India(INR)	India(INR)	Outside India(USD)	Outside India(USD)	
Title of the Journal	Frequency	Print Only	Online Only	Print Only	Online Only	
Community and Public Health Nursing	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Indian Journal of Agriculture Business Indian Journal of Anatomy	2	6000 9000	5500 8500	469 703	430 664	
Indian Journal of Ancient Medicine and Yoga	4	8500	8000	664	625	
Indian Journal of Anesthesia and Analgesia	6	8000	7500	625	586	
Indian Journal of Biology	2	6000	5500	469	430	
Indian Journal of Communicable Diseases	2	9500 9000	9000 8500	742	703 664	
Indian Journal of Dental Education	4	6000	5500	469	430	
Indian Journal of Diabetes and Endocrinology	2	8500	8000	664	625	
Indian Journal of Emergency Medicine	4	13000	12500	1016	977	
Indian Journal of Forensic Medicine and Pathology	4	6000	5500	469	430	
Indian Journal of Genetics and Molecular Research	2	7500	7000	586	547	
Indian Journal of Law and Human Behavior	3	6500	6000	508	469	
Indian Journal of Legal Medicine	2	9000	8500	703	664	
Indian Journal of Library and Information Science	3	10000	9500	781	742	
Indian Journal of Medical and Health Sciences	2	7500	7000	586	547	
Indian Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology	4	10000	9500	781	742	
Indian Journal of Pathology: Research and Practice	6	12500	12000	977	938	
Indian Journal of Plant and Soil	2	7000	6500	547	508 547	
Indian Journal of Research in Anthropology	2	13000	12500	1016	977	
Indian Journal of Surgical Nursing	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Indian Journal of Trauma and Emergency Pediatrics	4	10000	9500	781	742	
Indian Journal of Waste Management	2	10000	9500	781	742	
International Journal of Forensic Science	3	10500	10000	469 820	430	
International Journal of Neurology and Neurosurgery	4	11000	10500	859	820	
International Journal of Pediatric Nursing	3	6000	5500	469	430	
International Journal of Political Science	2	6500	6000	508	469	
International Journal of Practical Nursing	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Journal of Animal Feed Science and Technology	2	8300	7800	648	609	
Journal of Cardiovascular Medicine and Surgery	4	10500	10000	820	781	
Journal of Emergency and Trauma Nursing	2	6000	5500	469	430	
Journal of Forensic Chemistry and Toxicology	2	10000	9500	781	742	
Journal of Global Medical Education and Research	2	6400 12500	5900 12000	500 977	461 938	
Journal of Microbiology and Related Research	2	9000	8500	703	664	
Journal of Nurse Midwifery and Maternal Health	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Journal of Orthopedic Education	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Journal of Pharmaceutical and Medicinal Chemistry	2	17000	16500	1328	1289	
Journal of Psychiatric Nursing	3	6000	5500	469	430	
Journal of Social Welfare and Management	4	8000	7500	625	586	
New Indian Journal of Surgery	6	8500	7500	664	625	
Ophthalmology and Allied Sciences	3	6500	6000	508	469	
Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy Journal	4	9500	9000	742	703	
RFP Indian Journal of Medical Psychiatry	2	8500	8000	664	625	
RFP Journal of Biochemistry and Biophysics	2	7500	7000	586	547	
RFP Journal of Dermatology (Formerly Dermatology International)	2	6000	5500	469	430	
REP Journal of ENT and Allied Sciences (Formerly Otolaryngology International)	2	6000	5500	469	430	
Urology, Nephrology and Andrology International	2	8000	7500	625	586	
Coming Soon					2004 P	
RFP Gastroenterology International	2	-	-	-	-	
Journal of Food Additives and Contaminants	2	-	-	-	_	
Journal of Food Technology and Engineering Journal of Radiology	2	in e. The		level.	-	
Medical Drugs and Devices	3	-	-	-	-	
RFP Indian Journal of Hospital Infection	2	-	-	-	-	
RFP Journal of Gerontology and Geriatric Nursing	2	100	-		-	
 Agency discount 12.5%. Issues will be sent directly to the end user, otherwise foreign rates will be charged. All back volumes of all journals are available at current rates. All logal disputes subject to Delhi jurisdiction. Cancellations are not accepted orders once processed. Demand draft/cheque should be issued in favour of "Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd." payable at Delhi. Full pre-payment is required. It can be done through online (http://trpl.co.in/subscribe.php?mid=7). No claims will be entertained if not reported within 6 months of the publishing date. Orders and payments are to be sent to our office address as given below. Postage & Handling is included in the subscription rates. Subscription period is accepted on calendar year basis (i.e. Jan to Dec). However orders may be placed any time throughout the year. 						
Order from Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd., 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II, Mayur Vihar Phase-I, Delhi - 110 091 (India) Mobile: 8130750089, Phone: 91-11-79695648, 22754205, 22756995, E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in, Website: www.rfppl.co.in						

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

Indian Journal of Biology

<u>Editor-in-Chief</u> Prof. (Dr) Ashis Kumar Panigrahi, Pro-Vice-Chancellor, University of Burdwan Rajbati, Burdwan, West Bengal, India.

National Editorial Advisory Board Member

AK Verma, Zoology, Government P.G. College, Prayagraj, Uttar Pradesh Soumendranath Chatterjee, Zoology, University of Burdwan, Burdwan, West Bengal, India Gitanjali Mishra, Zoology, Berhampur University, Berhampur, Odisha B. S. Jha, Zoology, Lalit Narayan Mithila University, Darbhanga, Jyoti Prasad Saikia, Biology, Tezpur University, Tezpur, Assam Nand Lal, Life Sciences, C.S.J.M. University, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh PK Mohanty, Zoology, Utkal University, Bhubaneswar, Odisha Prashant Kamalakar Sanghai, Zoology, Shivaji
A.C. & Sci. college, Kannad, Maharashtra
Ravi Kiran, Agrometeorology, GBPUA & T,
Pantnagar, Uttarakhand
G S Solanki, Zoology, Mizoram central university,
Aizawl.
Wahied Khawar Balwan, Govt. Degree College,
Doda, University of Jammu, Jammu and Kashmir
Guru Prasad Mohanta, Pharmacy, Annamalai
University, Annamalai nagar, Tamilnadu
Parthankar Choudhury, Ecology and
Environmental Science, Assam University, Silchar

International Editorial Advisory Board Member

Dushyant Mishra, Texas A & M Health Science Center, College of Medicine, TX, USA Ekachai Chukeatirote, Mae Fah Luang University, Chiang Rai, Thailand Estari Mamidala, Biology, University of West Georgia Carrollton, GA, USA

Sachin Kumar Gupta, Pathology & Immunology, Baylor College of Medicine, TX, USA Nazrul Islam, Zoology, Uiniversity of Rajshahi, Rajshahi-6205, Bangladesh Shyam Narayan Labh, Zoology, Tribhuvan University, Kathmandu, Nepal

Managing Editor	Publication Editor
A. Lal	Dinesh Kumar Kashyap

Editorial Office: Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd., 48/41-42, DSIDC Pocket-II, Mayur Vihar Phase-I, Delhi – 110 091(India). Phone: 91-11-22754205, 45796900, Fax: 91-11-22754205 E-mail: info@rfppl.co.in. Website: www.rfppl.co.in

Indian Journal of Biology (IJB) (pISSN: 2394-1391, eISSN: 2455-8249) is a peer reviewed & refreed print and online international journal presents original and valuable research in all areas of zoology and botany. Indian Journal of Biology updated two times a year covers the latest and most compelling research of the time. This journal publishes full papers, notes and reviews in cell biology, molecular biology, genetic engineering, endocrinology, reproductive biology, immunology, developmental biology, evolutionary biology, comparative physiology, radiation biology, chronobiology, microbiology, pharmacology, toxicology, ecology and other biological fields including instrumentation and methodology. The fused journal will maintain and build on the strengths of both journals, publishing high-quality research across all of biology, as well as authoritative and topical review and comment.

SUBSCRIPTIONS, LICENSING, ADVERTISING AND REPRINTS

Indian Journal of Biology (IJB) (pISSN 2394-1391, eISSN: 2455-8249) is a peer reviewed & refreed print and online international journal presents original and valuable research in all areas of zoology and botany. Indian Journal of Biology updated two times a year covers the latest and most compelling research of the time.

Subscriptions: Volume 7, 2020 (Half yearly)

Both Standard and online-only subscriptions prices entitle subscribers to access all of the archival online content, which dates back to Volume 1 (2014). For further details please contact to Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd.

Institutions print and electronic: INR6000/USD469. Institutions electronic only: INR 5500/USD430.

Orders are regarded as firm, and payments are not refundable. All orders and enquiries, including online licensing and consortia enquiries, should be sent to : Journals Subscription Department, Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd.

Advertising sales

Contact Ad sales, journals, Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. Advertisement Manager Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II, Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi - 110 091(India). Mob: +91-8130750089 Phone: 91-11-22756995, 22754205, 45796900, Fax: 91-11-22754205 Email: sales@rfppl.co.in, website: www.rfppl.co.in

Other business correspondence

All other business correspondence should be sent to: sales@rfppl.co.in, Journals Department, Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. Enquiries about reprints should be sent to Ad sales: sales@rfppl.co.in.

©2020 IJB

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or review, as permitted under the Indian Copyright Act, 1957, no part of this publication may be reproduced, stored, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the prior permission in writing of the editor, or in the case of reprographic reproduction in accordance with the terms of licenses issued by the Copyright Licensing Agency in India, or in accordance with the terms of licenses issued by the appropriate Reproduction Rights Organization outside India. Enquiries concerning reproduction outside the terms stated here should be sent to the publishers at the above address. Contributors and advertisers are responsible of the scientific content and the views expressed, which are not necessarily those of the Editors or of Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd.

Indian Journal of Biology

Volume 8 Number 1 January – June 2021

Contents	
ORIGINAL ARTICLES	
Effect of Anthropogenic Disturbances on the Distribution of Spider Species in Gopalpur and its Adjacent Villages of Ganjam District Odisha Gitanjali Mishra, Somanath Sahoo	9
Carbon dioxide and Suspended PM Variation in Barrackpore Cantonment Area during 2019-2020: Effect of Lockdown Monojit Ray	17
RNA Profiling: More Help in Forensic Serology Arushi Chawla, Chandrima Das	24
REVIEW ARTICLES	
Micropropagated Plants as Alternative Planting Material to Sugarcane Setts Nand Lal	27
Guidelines for Authors	33

Red Flower Publication (P) Ltd.

Presents its Book Publications for sale

1.	Drugs in Anesthesia and Critical Care (2019) By Bhavna Gupta, Lalit Gupta	INR 595/USD46
2.	Critical Care Nursing in Emergency Toxicology (2019) By Vivekanshu Verma, Sandhya Shankar Pandey, Atul Bansal	INR 460/USD34
3.	Practical Record Book of Forensic Medicine and Toxicology (2019) By Akhilesh K. Pathak	INR 299/USD23
4.	Skeletal and Structural Organizations of Human Body (2019) <i>By D. R. Singh</i>	INR 659/USD51
5.	Comprehensive Medical Pharmacology (2019) By Ahmad Najmi	INR 599/USD47
6.	Practical Emergency Trauma Toxicology Cases Workbook in Simulation Training (2019) <i>by Vivekanshu Verma, Shiv Rattan Kochar & Devendra Richhariya</i>	INR395/USD31
7.	MCQs in Minimal Access & Bariatric Surgery (2019) by Anshuman Kaushal & Dhruv Kundra	INR450/USD35
8.	Biostatistics Methods for Medical Research (2019) by Sanjeev Sarmukaddam	INR549/USD44
9.	MCQs in Medical Physiology (2019) by Bharati Mehta & Bharti Bhandari Rathore	INR300/USD29
10.	Synopsis of Anesthesia (2019) by Lalit Gupta & Bhavna Gupta	INR1195/USD95
11.	Shipping Economics (2018) by D. Amutha, Ph.D.	INR345/USD27
12.	Breast Cancer: Biology, Prevention and Treatment (2015) by Rana P. Singh, Ph.D. & A. Ramesh Rao, Ph.D.	INR395/USD100
13.	Child Intelligence (2005) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR150/USD50
14.	Pediatric Companion (2001) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR250/USD50

Order from

Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi - 110 091(India) Mobile: 8130750089, Phone: 91-11-45796900, 22754205, 22756995 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in

Effect of Anthropogenic Disturbances on the Distribution of Spider Species in Gopalpur and its Adjacent Villages of Ganjam District Odisha

Gitanjali Mishra¹, Somanath Sahoo²

How to cite this article:

Gitanjali Mishra, Somanath Sahoo, Effect of Anthropogenic Disturbances on the Distribution of Spider Species in Gopalpur and its Adjacent Vill -ages of Ganjam District Odisha. Indian J Biol 2021; 8(1):9–15.

Author's Affiliations: ¹Professor, ²Research scholar, PG Department of Zoology, Berhampur University, Odisha 760007, India.

Corresponding Author: Somanath Sahoo, Research scholar, PG Department of Zoology, Berhampur University, Odisha 760007, India.

E-mail: cool.somanath@gmail.com

Abstract

Anthropogenic disturbances cause many undesirable changes in our ecosystem that directly or indirectly affect the livelihood of people. In the present study, we investigated spider diversity and distribution in habitats with different degrees of anthropogenic disturbances in Gopalpur of Ganjam district, Odisha from November 2018 to January 2020. A total of 592 spider specimens belonging to 23 species were recorded. It was observed that the more the degree of anthropogenic disturbances, the lesser was the diversity of spider species. The spider population was negatively affected by the frequency of disturbances in their habitat. Ecological parameters such as temperature, humidity, wind speed and direction, and light intensity were changing at a higher rate in more disturbed areas, indicating differences, due to human impact. The study reveals that anthropogenic disturbances produce ecological changes that most of the spider species may not tolerate. Again, the distribution pattern of arboreal orb-web making spider species was greatly affected by the frequent disturbances whereas ground-dwelling species were least affected. To retain spider diversity in any locality, there needs a management plan for incorporating some undisturbed wild vegetation patches both in rural and urban areas. This could include rules on how to keep that vegetation patch undisturbed and not been influenced by any household waste materials or drained water from any industry, factory, or crop field.

Keywords: Spider; Vegetation; Diversity; Frequency.

Introduction

All living organisms including human depends on free services provided by natural ecosystems for their sustenance on earth. Although human can modify the natural ecosystems to grab most of the benefits for their own, anthropogenic disturbances cause many undesirable changes in the ecosystem that directly or indirectly affect the livelihood of people (Kremenet al., 2007; Winfree et al., 2009; Shrestha et al., 2013; Leal et al., 2014; Cambellet al., 2018).Spiders are the beneficial animal for agroecosystem as they control the pest population without degrading the quality of crop plants (Riechert, 1999; Maloney et al., 2003; Happeet al., 2019). The use of pesticides in crop fields can make the crops especially vegetables and fruits to be toxic for direct consumption (Fantke& Jolliet, 2016; Valcke, 2017; Carvalho, 2017). On the other hand, a low dose of pesticides in the field can induce resistant varieties of pests to be repopulated (Georghiou & Mellon, 1983; Guo et al., 1998). In this situation, integrated pest management can be helpful. Hereafter application of a low dose of

pesticides in crop fields, spiders can be reintroduced to predating upon those resistant varieties. Therefore, in this context, it is very much important to know about the ecology of spider species to make them boons against pests in the modern system of integrated pest management. Anthropogenic disturbances influencing the diversity and distribution of most of the arthropod species.

In this present research work, it is hypothesized that the anthropogenic disturbances cause ecological changes that influence the distribution of spider species. This study aims to compare spider diversity and distribution at different grades of human-disturbed habitats in coastal areas of Gopalpur, Ganjam district, Odisha.

Materials and Methods

Study area: The study was conducted in a coastal belt of 5-kilometre width from the coastal line and20-kilometre length along the coastal line which includes Gopalpur

and its adjacent area in Ganjam district of Odisha. The whole study area was divided into three categorical areas such as human settled areas (HSA), agricultural crop fields (ACF), and wild vegetational areas (WVA). That division was done according to the degree of human interference in the habitat. In the human settled areas, the sampling was conducted inside the vegetation grown at the side of the road, factories, and dump yards. In the agricultural crop fields, sampling was conducted inside the rice and vegetable crop field before harvesting. Wild vegetational areas were existed far from both human settled areas and crop fields and were mostly contained varieties of shrubs with randomly grown trees. We have selected 5 sampling sites randomly from each categorical area. Thus, a whole total of 15 sampling sites were chosen for all types of data collection.



Fig. 1: Map showing study area and sampling sites. (Source: Google map)

Spider sampling: Spider sampling was done from the sampling sites of each category of the area twice a month for fifteen months from November 2018 to January 2020. Four methods were taken for spider samplings such as branch-beating and shaking technique for arboreal spiders, leaf litter sampling technique for ground-dwelling spiders, trapping technique (pit-fall trap for ground-dwelling spiders and hanging traps on shrubs and trees for arboreal spiders), and visual search technique. Some quadrates having the size of (1 X 1) m² were taken randomly from each categorical area for estimating spider density and distribution. During sampling, spiders were counted and identified in the field up to the family level by using standard field guides.

Then collection and photography were done in the laboratory followed by preservation in 70% alcohol for later identification at least up to genus level.

Determination of ecological disturbances: Temperature, humidity, wind speed, wind direction, and light intensity was recorded near the vegetation at an interval of five minutes for one hour during mid-day time to find out the average change in the value of an ecological parameter per minute that represent the degree of anthropogenic disturbances in a particular habitat. Temperature, humidity, wind speed, and light intensity were measured by using portable standard digital instruments whereas wind direction was determined by the smoke direction from a burning incense stick using a compass.

Data analysis: Spider abundance in each categorical area was calculated as the average density (number per meter square) of five sampling sites in that habitat. For measuring spider diversity, species richness (total number of species) and the Shannon-Weiner species

diversity index were used. Mean species richness and mean diversity index per sampling site were considered for comparative analysis. Statistical calculations were done by using Microsoft Excel 2013.

Results



Fig. 2: Rate of change of ecological parameters at different categorical habitats.

Ecological parameters of each categorical habitat or areas: The average values of change in Fahrenheit temperature per minute in the five sampling sites of each categorical areas have been compared to found that, In the human settlement areas (HSA), there exhibits a large range of fluctuation in comparison to agricultural crop fields (ACF) and wild vegetational areas (WVA). There is a little significant difference between ACF and WVA. A similar result is found for change in the percentage of

relative humidity per minute. Change in light intensity in lux per minute is slightly higher in HSA, but there was no significant difference between ACF and WVA. Therefore change in light intensity due to anthropogenic disturbances is insignificant to produce an effect on the ecological condition. Change in wind speed in (km/hour) per minute and change in wind direction in degree per minute has much significant difference among the three categorical habitats in the order of HSA>ACF>WVA.
 Table 1: Diversity and distribution of spiders inside the whole studied area.

.	a	Habitat		t		
Family	Species	HSA	ACF	WVA	Description	
Araneidae	1. Anepsion	0	1	3	Arboreal, Orb-web	
	<i>maritatum</i> (O.Pickard-Cambridge, 1877)				builders	
	2. <i>Cyclosa</i> sp.	0	1	3	Arboreal, Orb-web builders	
	3. <i>Neoscona</i> sp.	0	0	1	Arboreal, Orb-web builders	
	4. Argiope pulchella Thorell, 1881	1	2	3	Arboreal, Orb-web builders	
	5. Gasteracantha geminata (Fabricius, 1798)	1	2	3	Arboreal, Orb-web builders	
	6. Araneus sp.	0	0	1	Arboreal, Orb-web builders; Nocturnal	
Ctenidae	7. Ctenus sp.	1	1	2	Ground dwelling; Found in leaf litter, crevices of the rock, sandy surface or on the muddy semi-dried soil; Nocturnal	
Lycosidae	8. <i>Lycosa</i> sp.	2	3	2	Ground dwelling; Found in leaf litter, crevices of the rock, sandy surface or on the muddy semi-dried soil; Nocturnal	
	9. Hippasa sp.	2	3	2	Ground dwelling; Tunnel sheet/funnel-web builder	
	10 Paradosa sp.	1	3	2	Ground dwelling; Tunnel sheet/funnel-web builder	
Oxyopidae	11. Oxyopes birmanicus Thorell, 1887	2	3	2	Arboreal, ambush hunter	
	12. Oxyopes sp.	2	2	3	Ground dwelling on leaf litter or herbs, Diurnal	
	13. <i>Peucetia viridana</i> (Stoliczka, 1869)	1	3	3	Arboreal, ambush hunter	
Salticidac	14. <i>Telamonia dimidiata</i> (Simon, 1899)	1	2	2	Arborcal, ambush hunter	
	15. Hyllus semicupreus (Simon, 1885)	1	2	2	Arboreal, ambush hunter	
	16. <i>Phintella vittata</i> (C.L. Koch, 1846)	1	2	2	Arboreal, ambush hunter	
	17. <i>Myrmaplata plataleoides</i> (O. Pickard-Cambridge, 1869)	0	2	2	Ant mimicking spider, Close proximity to ant	
	18. Myrmaplata sp.	2	2	1	Ant mimicking spider, Close proximity to ant	
	19. Portia sp.	0	0	2	Arboreal, hunt small spiders and termites.	
Sparassidae	20. Olios milleti (Pocock, 1901)	0	1	3	Arboreal, ambush hunter	
Tetragnathidae	21. <i>Tetragnatha javana</i> (Thorell, 1890)	1	1	2	Arboreal, horizontal orb- web builder	
Theridiidae	22. Argyrodes sp.	0	1	2	Arboreal, Orb-web builder	
Thomisidae	23. Thomisus sp.	1	3	3	Arboreal, Ambush hunters	
					-	

0=Poor abundance, 1=Little abundance, 2=Moderate abundance, 3=High abundance.



1. Anepsion maritatum (O.Pickard-Cambridge, 1877)





2. Cyclosa sp.



3. Neoscona sp.



4. Argiope pulchella Thorell, 1881



5. Gasteracantha geminata (Fabricius, 1798)



6. Araneus sp.







9. Hippasa sp.

14. Telamonia

dimidiata (Simon, 1899)



10 Paradosa sp.



15. Hyllus semicupreus (Simon, 1885)



20. Olios milleti (Pocock, 1901)



11. Oxyopes birmanicus Thorell, 1887



12. Oxyopes sp.

17. Myrmaplata

plataleoides (O. Pickard-Cambridge, 1869)



13. Peucetia viridana (Stoliczka, 1869)



18. Myrmaplata sp.



19. Portia sp.



16. Phintella vittata (C.L.

Koch, 1846)

21. Tetragnatha javana (Thorell, 1890)





23. Thomisus sp.

Fig. 3: Photographs of spiders from sampling.

Spider diversity and distribution: Overall 592 spider specimens were collected by all collecting methods from 15 sampling sites, representing 9 families and 23 species. From HSA and ACF, only 14 and 19 species were found respectively. All species were found to available in WVA. Spider abundance in number per square meter area is

least in HSA and on the other hand, there is a little higher abundance in ACF in comparison to WVA. Mean species richness per sampling site and diversity indices per sampling site have values in the order of HSA<<ACF<WVA.





Fig.4: Spider abundance, species richness, and diversity indices at different categorical habitats.

Discussion

From the study, it is found that temperature and humidity in HSA are highly fluctuating, mostly due to burning action, the presence of concrete roads and buildings, smoke, and dust particles in the air. Wind speed and wind direction are not fluctuating to a greater extent at WVA due to the presence of trees and dense vegetation. In ACF, small height plants do not resist the change in wind speed and wind direction. Heavy vehicular movements is an important reason for the high rate of fluctuation of wind speed and wind direction at HAS. Anthropogenic disturbances make a high rate of change in the ecological factors that directly affect the population growth rate of different spider species in a different manner (Schweiger et. al., 2005; Lowe et. al., 2014; Picchi et. al., 2016). Changing and fluctuating ecological state reduces the predatory and mating behaviour, their fecundity rate, and developmental success by most of the wild spider species (Johonson et. al., 2019). Changing environmental conditions whether at a higher or lower degree, but in a constant rhythmic pattern (diurnal or seasonal changes), allows the growth of certain varieties of adaptable species to be populated and establish a good ecological community. On the other hand, habitats having frequently changing ecological factors which are mostly due to anthropogenic activities, resist the growth of most of the orb-web builder and other arboreal spider species. Only a few spider species such as ground-dwelling spiders and sheet web builder species can exploit the area to establish a poor diversified community structure (Shochat et. al., 2008). Ground

dwelling spiders in the community can only participate in the ecological food chain at the ground part of the whole habitat, but not at the upper arboreal habitat. For establishing complete ecological balance, there needs the presence of spiders exhibiting all types of functional habitats or niches.

Conclusion

As spider diversity and distribution is considered as the indicator of sustainable ecological habitat (Maelfait & Hendrick, 1998; Langor & Spence, 2006), their conservation strategies can bring ecological balance which will be beneficial for the vegetational growth, both at human settlement areas and crop fields. Therefore, to retain spider diversity in any locality, there needs a management plan for incorporating some undisturbed wild vegetational patches both in rural and urban areas. This could include rules on how to keep that vegetational patch undisturbed and not been influenced by any household waste materials or drained water from any industry, factory, or crop field.

References

- Campbell AJ, Carvalheiro LG, Maues MM, Jaffe R, et al. Anthropogenic disturbance of tropical forests threatens pollination services to açaí palm in the Amazon river delta. J Appl Ecol. 2018; 55:1725-1736.
- Carvalho FP. Pesticides, environment, and food safety. Food and Energy Security 2017; 6(2): 48–60.

- Fantke P, Jolliet O. Life cycle human health impacts of 875 pesticides. Int J Life Cycle 2016; 21: 722–733. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11367-015-0910-y
- Georghiou G.P., Mellon R.B. (1983) Pesticide Resistance in Time and Space. In: Georghiou G.P., Saito T. (eds) Pest Resistance to Pesticides. Springer, Boston, MA. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4684-4466-7_1
- Guo F, Zhang Z & Zhao Z. Pesticide resistance of Tetranychuscinnabarinus (Acari: Tetranychidae) in China: a review. Systematic and Applied Acarology 1998; 3(1):3-7. https://doi.org/10.11158/saa.3.1.1
- Happe AK, Alins G, Bluthgen N, Boreux V, et al. Predatory arthropods in apple orchards across Europe: Responses to agricultural management, adjacent habitat, landscape composition and country. Agriculture, Ecosystems & Environment 2019; 273: 141-150.
- Johnson JC, Urcuyo J, Moen C, Stevens DR. Urban heat island conditions experienced by the Western black widow spider (Latrodectushesperus): Extreme heat slows development but results in behavioral accommodations. PLOS ONE 2019; 14(9): e0220153. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0220153
- Kremen C, Williams NM, Aizen MA, Herren BG, et al. Pollination and other ecosystem services produced by mobile organisms: a conceptual framework for the effects of land-use change. Ecology Letters 2007; 10: 299-314.
- Langor DW and Spence JR. Arthropods as ecological indicators of sustainability in Canadian forests. The Forestry Chronicle 2006; 82(3): 344-350. https://doi.org/10.5558/tfc82344-3
- Leal, L.C., Andersen, A.N. & Leal, I.R. Anthropogenic disturbance reduces seed-dispersal services for myrmecochorous plants in the Brazilian Caatinga. Oecologia 2014; 174: 173-181.
- Lowe EC, Wilder SM, Hochuli DF. Urbanisation at Multiple Scales Is Associated with Larger Size and Higher Fecundity of an Orb-Weaving Spider. Plos one 2014; 9(8): e105480. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0105480
- Maelfait J, Hendrickx F. Spiders as bio-indicators of anthropogenic stress in natural and semi-natural habitats in Flanders (Belgium): some recent developments. Proceedings of the 17th European Colloquium of Arachnology, Edinburgh 1997; Selden PA, editor; 293-300.

- Maloney D, Drummond FA & Alford R. Spider Predation in Agroecosystems: Can Spiders Effectively Control Pest Populations? Technical Bulletin, The University of Maine 2003; 190: 1-27.
- Picchi MS, Bocci G, Petacchi R, Entling MH. Effects of local and landscape factors on spiders and olive fruit flies. Agriculture, Ecosystems & Environment 2016; 222: 138-147. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.agee.2016.01.045.
- Riechert SE. The Hows and Whys of Successful Pest Suppression by Spiders: Insights from Case Studies. The Journal of Arachnology 1999; 27(1): 387–396. JSTOR, www.jstor.org/stable/3706011. Accessed 30 Nov. 2020.
- Schweiger O, MaelfaitJp, Wingerden Wv, Hendrickx F, Billeter R, Speelmans M, Augenstein I, Aukema B, Aviron S, Bailey D, Bukacek R, Burel F, Diekötter T, Dirksen J, Frenzel M, Herzog F, Liira J, Roubalova M, Bugter R. Quantifying the impact of environmental factors on arthropod communities in agricultural landscapes across organizational levels and spatial scales. Journal of Applied Ecology 2005; 42: 1129-1139. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2664.2005.01085.x
- Shochat E, Stefanov W, Whitehouse M, Faeth S. Urbanization and Spider Diversity: Influences of Human Modification of Habitat Structure and Productivity. In: Marzluff J.M. et al. (eds) Urban Ecology. Springer 2008. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-0-387-73412-5_30
- Shrestha KB, Måren IE, Arneberg E, Sah JP, et al. Effect of anthropogenic disturbance on plant species diversity in oak forests in Nepal, Central Himalaya. International Journal of Biodiversity Science, Ecosystem Services & Management 2013; 9(1): 21-29,
- Valcke M, Bourgault MH, Rochette Louis, Normandin L., et al. Human health risk assessment on the consumption of fruits and vegetables containing residual pesticides: A cancer and non-cancer risk/benefit perspective. Environment International 2017; 108: 63-74.
- Winfree R, Aguilar R, Vázquez DP, LeBuhn G, et al. Marcelo A. Aizen. A meta-analysis of bees' responses to anthropogenic disturbance. Ecological Society of America 2009; 90 (8): 2068-2076.

Indian Journal of Biology

Library Recommendation Form

If you would like to recommend this journal to your library, simply complete the form given below and return it to us. Please type or print the information clearly. We will forward a sample copy to your library, along with this recommendation card.

Please send a sample copy to:

Name of Librarian Name of Library Address of Library

Recommended by:

Your Name/ Title

Department

Address

Dear Librarian,

I would like to recommend that your library subscribe to the Indian Journal of Biology. I believe the major future uses of the journal for your library would provide:

1. Useful information for members of my specialty.

2. An excellent research aid.

3. An invaluable student resource.

I have a personal subscription and understand and appreciate the value an institutional subscription would mean to our staff.

Should the journal you're reading right now be a part of your University or institution's library? To have a free sample sent to your librarian, simply fill out and mail this today!

Stock Manager Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi - 110 091(India) Phone: 91-11-45796900, 22754205, 22756995, Cell: +91-9821671871 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in **Original** Article

Carbon dioxide and Suspended PM Variation in Barrackpore Cantonment Area during 2019-2020: Effect of Lockdown

Monojit Ray

How to cite this article: Monojit Ray, Carbon dioxide and Suspended PM Variation in Barrackpore Cantonment Area during 2019-2020: Effect of Lockdown.Indian J Biol 2021; 8(1):17-19.

Author's Affiliations: Principal and Professor of Chemistry, Barrackpore Rastraguru Surendranath College, Barrackpore, Kolkata 700120, West Bengal, India.

Corresponding Author: Monojit Ray, Principal and Professor of Chemistry, Barrackpore Rastraguru Surendranath College, Barrackpore, Kolkata 700120, West Bengal, India.

E-mail: monojit1972@gmail.com

Abstract

Barrackpore cantonment, the oldest cantonment of India is very green indeed and have number of trees with low population density. In this study I had measured the amount of carbon dioxide and particulate matters namely PM 2.5 and PM 10 present in air throughout the years 2019 and 2020. From the experimental results it is evident that lockdown for pandemic and rainfall made a profound effect in air quality for at least seven months of 2020. Particulate matters are serious air pollutants and carcinogenic.

Keywords: Barrackpore Cantonment; Carbon dioxide; Lockdown.

Introduction

Barrackpore cantonment area (Location 22.78° N, 88.48° E) is situated within barrackpore subdivision, north 24 pargana district of West Bengal, India. Barrackpore cantonment is the oldest cantonment of India.1 The cantonment area is surrounded by Barrackpore municipal area on the east and south, North Barrackpore municipal area on the north, Hooghly river on the west.^{2,3} According to Census of India data 2011, the total population was 17,380 within barrackpore cantonment area. The only road connections are there and one army air base is situated within this area. Number of Schools and only one college having two campuses are situated within this area. The main source of air pollutions are human activity and automobile exhaust. According to Indian standard, moderate level of carbon dioxide, particulate matter 2.5 (PM 2.5) and particulate matter 10 (PM 10) in air are 900 ppm, $100\mu g/m^3$, and 60 $\mu g/m^3$ respectively.

Sampling and Instrument

Sampling were done in different locations of barrackpore cantonment area at least twenty days in every month. The instrument used is a portable low volume sampler made by Airveda TM Model No PM2510CTH (India Made). The instrument measure PM by light scattering sensor and carbondioxide by nondispersive infrared sensor. The instrument was purchased by Barrackpore Rastraguru Surendranath College under UGC CPE fund.

Results

Table 1: Monthly average carbondioxide, PM 2.5, PM 10 and humidity data of barrackpore cantonment area during January 2019 to December 2019.

Month	Carbon Dioxide (ppm)	PM 2.5 (μg/m ³)	PM10 (μg/m³)	Humidity (%)
January 2019	610.60	148.70	243.40	48.70
February 2019	582.00	113.50	210.16	51.50
March 2019	599.30	71.60	146.40	49.00
April 2019	594.57	50.14	95.57	56.00
May 2019	654.00	70.00	106.83	56.83
June 2019	745.00	47.40	85.80	57.20
July 2019	729.60	46.00	96.30	66.40
August 2019	688.80	27.50	50.50	65.30
September 2019	727.50	28.00	71.83	67.83
October 2019	823.00	41.50	69.00	64.50
November 2019	734.50	77.50	179.25	60.80
December 2019	653.60	129.30	225.60	51.30

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

Table 2: Monthly average carbondioxide, PM 2.5, PM 10 and humidity data of barrackpore cantonment area during January 2020 to December 2020.

Month	Carbon Dioxide (ppm)	PM 2.5 (μg/m ³)	PM10 (μg/m ³)	Humidity (%)
January 2020	738.25	138.00	216.00	55.50
February 2020	660.30	81.50	133.40	45.10
March 2020	678.75	80.50	133.50	61.50
April 2020	469.00	44.00	202.00	70.00
May 2020	656.00	38.75	62.00	74.00
June 2020	672.75	39.50	57.50	68.75
July 2020	672.80	32.00	42.80	72.00
August 2020	684.60	09.60	15.60	71.50
September 2020	725.60	32.50	40.00	72.25
October 2020	826.00	41.00	61.00	52.00
November 2020	768.00	22.00	61.00	46.00
December 2020	744.28	153.28	246.57	53.57

Table 3: Monthly average temperature and number of rain day data of barrackpore cantonment area.

Month	Temp High/Low(°C)	Rain
January	26°/13°	1 day
February	29º/16º	1 day
March	34°/21°	2 days
April	36°/24°	3 days
May	36°/25°	7 days
June	34°/26°	14 days
July	33°/26°	18 days
August	33°/26°	18 days
September	33°/26°	14 days
October	32°/24°	7 days
November	30°/19°	1 day
December	27º/14º	0 day











Fig. 2: Comparison of average PM 2.5 values.



PM 10 (µg/m3)

Fig. 3: Comparison of average PM 10 values.



Fig. 4: Comparison of average humidity values.

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

Discussion

According to Indian standard air containing carbon dioxide above 1100 ppm is poor, around 900 ppm moderate and below 750 ppm is satisfactory. Carbon dioxide concentrations are comparable for the months august to November for both the year (Fig. 1). Carbon dioxide concentration majorly remain more than 600 ppm throughout the year with some exceptions (Fig. 1). The concentration of carbon dioxide is higher relatively during winter of 2019 (Table 1.) and also for 2020. Lowest carbon dioxide concentration is found during April 2020 (Table 2). According to Indian standard air containing PM 2.5 above 90 μ g/m³ is poor, around 60 μ g/m³ moderate and below 30 µg/m³ is satisfactory. PM 2.5 remain higher than 80 µg/m3 during winter (Fig. 2.) but gradually decreases with the number of rain days in a month. Rainfall removes particulates from air. The PM 2.5 value remain below 50 $\mu g/m^3$ during eight months (April 2020 to November 2020) (Table 2) whereas during 2019 for only five months (June 2019 to October 2019). The value of PM 2.5 stands below 100 $\mu g/m^3$ for nine months during 2019 and ten months during 2020. According to Indian standard air containing PM 10 above 250 µg/m³ is poor, around 100 μ g/m³ moderate and below 50 μ g/m³ is satisfactory. Average PM 10 value were found higher than 100µg/m3 during winter (November, December, January, February and March) but gradually decreases with the number of rain days in a month (Fig. 3). Rainfall removes PM 10 from air. The PM 10 value remain below 100 µg/m³ during six months during 2019 (April, June, July, August, September and October 2019) whereas, during 2020 it remains below 100 μ g/m³ for seven months (May 2020 to November 2020) (Table 2). The minimum value of PM 10 was found $\mu g/m^3$ for 15.60 for August 2020. Humidity is maximum in rainy season and minimum during winter (Fugure 4).

Conclusion

Due to the effect of strict lockdown carbon dioxide concentration was low during April 2020 and the average value is lower than average April 2019 value by an amount of 21.12%. It may be concluded from data that with respect to carbon dioxide air quality of barrackpore cantonment area is "moderate". The air quality of barrackpore cantonment are poor during January, February, December 2019 and January & December 2020 with respect to PM 2.5. The barrackpore cantonment air quality with respect to PM 2.5 found "satisfactory" during August, September 2019 and July to November 2020. Within barrackpore cantonment area air quality is "satisfactory" with reference to PM 10 for august to October 2019 and May to November 2020. The extra four months PM 10 low data for the year 2020 can be attributed to lockdown due to pandemic. High PM 10 data are found for January, February, March, November, December 2019 and January, February, March, April & December 2020.

Particulate matter arises from soil dust, road dust, burning of fossil fuel in vehicles, industry exhausts, power plants etc. In barrackpore cantonment area particulate matter in air arises only from soil dust, road dust, burning of fossil fuel in vehicles and human activity only. Though there are no industry within barrackpore cantonment area still there are many industries within barrackpore subdivision. Particulate matter deposits on the leaf of plants, may clog the stomatal mouth and interfere with the photosynthesis activity of plant.⁴ It is established fact that particulate matters are most powerful and harmful air pollutant as well as carcinogen. In the year 2016, throughout the world, 4.1 million deaths were reported on exposure to PM 2.5 through heart disease and stroke, lung cancer, chronic lung disease and lung disease.⁵ Fine particulate matter PM 2.5 reach to alveolus of human lung. In present days due to COVID 19 pandemic most people are using face masks which prevent entry of PM 2.5 and PM 10 within human lung. Even when the pandemic will be over use of face mask is essential during winter (December, January and February) to keep safe from air pollutant particulates as during winter PM 2.5 and PM 10 remain higher than Indian standard and WHO standard. As a result of lockdown PM 10 values found lower than expected during the period May 2020 to November 2020 and it is evident from the comparison data of 2019 for the same period (May to November). It is clearly evident that air pollutants specially particulates found relatively low during 2020 for post lockdown period with an effect for seven months, but again became similar to earlier (before lockdown) during December 2020. Final conclusion can be made that May 2020 to November 2020 overall air quality of barrackpore cantonment area was highly satisfactory whereas in 2019 overall air quality was highly satisfactory for June to October only.

Acknowledgement

Monojit Ray thanks Research monitoring committee, Governing Body, Barrackpore Rastraguru Surendranath College and University Grant Commission, India for financial assistance to Barrackpore Rastraguru Surendranath College under CPE scheme.

References

- 1. Danapur cant celebrates 250 yrs. https://timeso findia.indiatimes.com/city/patna/Danapur-canttcelebrates-250-yrs/articleshow/48366531.cms
- 2. District Census Handbook North Twenty Four Parganas, Census of India 2011, Series 20, Part XII A.Map of Barrackpore I CD Block on Page 365. Directorate of Census Operations, West Bengal.
- District Census Handbook North Twenty Four Parganas, Census of India 2011, Series 20, Part XII A. Map of Barrackpore II CD Block on Page 379. Directorate of Census Operations, West Bengal.
- Hogan CM, Emily Monosson and C Cleveland. "Abiotic factor". Encyclopedia of Earth. National Council for Science and the Environment. 2010.
- 5. State of Global Air/2018 A Special Report On Global Exposure To Air Pollution And Its Disease Burden Health Effect Institute.2018.

REDKART.NET

(A product of RF Library Services (P) Limited) (Publications available for purchase: Journals, Books, Articles and Single issues) (Date range: 1967 to till date)

The Red Kart is an e-commerce and is a product of RF Library Services (P) Ltd. It covers a broad range of journals, Books, Articles, Single issues (print & Online-PDF) in English and Hindi languages. All these publications are in stock for immediate shipping and online access in case of online.

Benefits of shopping online are better than conventional way of buying.

- 1. Convenience.
- 2. Better prices.
- 3. More variety.
- 4. Fewer expenses.
- 5. No crowds.
- 6. Less compulsive shopping.
- 7. Buying old or unused items at lower prices.
- 8. Discreet purchases are easier.

URL: www.redkart.net

RNA Profiling: More Help in Forensic Serology

Arushi Chawla¹, Chandrima Das²

How to cite this article:

Chandrima Das, Arushi Chawla, RNA Profiling: More Help in Forensic Serology.Indian J Biol 2021; 8(1):21-24.

Author's Affiliations: ¹Professor, ²BSc Student, Department of forensic science, Parul institute of applied sciences, Parul University, Vadodara, waghodia, Gujarat 391760, India.

Corresponding Author: Arushi Chawla, Professor, Department of forensic science, Parul institute of applied sciences, Parul University, Vadodara, waghodia, Gujarat 391760, India.

E-mail: arushi.chawla82130@paruluniversity.ac.in

Abstract

RNA profiling or more specifically messenger RNA (mRNA) profiling is a very useful method to study the body fluids. Various type of body fluids can be found from a crime scene. Because of the changes in the fluids over period of time, it requires more improvise identification method. To study the different biomarkers in different body fluids which is not distinguishable in general process or to analyse the body fluids present in back spatter of a gun, RNA typing or profiling is a safe process. The difference between menstrual blood and peripheral blood, nasal mucosa and vaginal mucosa can be very important in a case. Most of cases DNA profiling for those body fluids are sensitive than RNA profiling. Results of those process show false positive results more which affect the case progress. RNA profiling helps to establish the correlation between DNA profiling in those cases. Addition of many pre mRNAs form a circular RNA (cRNA) which plays the most important role in RNA profiling.

Keywords: Difference between Body Fluids; RNA Profiling; More Accurate Results; Microrna; Forensic Serology.

Introduction

RNA or ribonucleic acid, a single chain polyribonucleo -tide controlled every important function in the early life this fact is not very acceptable. More clearly RNA was first genetic material. It is also not much clear how it helped as first biocatalyst1. Though it is not so sure still there are some enzymes – ribozymes are made up of RNA. Through some medical changes it formed into DNA. Now RNA acts as carrier of coded genetic information from DNA to cytoplasm to help in protein and enzyme synthesis.

RNA is single stranded polynucleotides but some places it shows partially double stranded due to folding or coiling of the single strand. There are 70-12000 ribonucleotides joined from start to end2. The backbone of RNA is made up of alternate residue of phosphate and ribose sugar. These phosphate combines with 5' of its sugar and 3' of next sugar and form a DNA like structure. There are four types of nitrogen bases present in RNA 1) adenine 2) guanine 3) cytosine 4) uracil. Nitrogen bases arrange as a complementary to respective DNA template. There are 3 types of RNA mainly help in every major classes. It also acts as a genetic material in some viruses.



Source: https://i.pinimg.com/originals/d8/d4/bf/d8d4bf197be55e449 fd4f4d436db3d16.jpg

Collected body fluids from the crime scene are major help to solve a particular crime. RNA was first mentioned in forensic literature by oehmichem et al in 1984 reporting on post mortal biosynthesis of DNA and RNA³. We can find RNA from dried blood stain, saliva mucosa, vaginal mucosa, buccal mucosa, semen. If there is very little amount of evidence, we still can apply PCR (polymerase chain reaction) to increase the amount of that specific biological fluid. To work with body fluids, we have to be cautious about degradation of its. We should consider sensitive and stable bio markers to prevent the effect of degradation, for that we can consider microRNAs which are less prone to degradation due to their small size and stable structure.⁴ RNA profiling also helps to investigate postmortem time interval, age of the wound, identify the exact firearms used for murder from numerous numbers of fire arms in a gang fighting or robbery. But to get exact desirable results we should follow some precautions-1) how unbiasly we can execute the identification 2) distinguishable process adapt to extraction of RNA than DNA 3) consider physiological. Environmental factors.

Through this article I am giving the idea of more use of RNAs in forensic investigation as it gives more accurate result than DNA profiling for body fluids and reduces false positive results. With the guidance of proper procedures, we can solve more cold cases. We will be able to give those cases a proper breakthrough and it will be easier to narrow down the suspects.

Methods

Sample collection:

We can easily collect set of control samples of body fluids and tissues and through the process of evidence collection. This control set includes blood, salina, vaginal mucosa, menstrual secretion, semen and skin sampling from four individuals⁵. To called fresh nasal mucosa samples we have to consider both nostrils and for variation the more number will be beneficial.by using a single cotton swab per nostril the sample from 22 individuals were taken. From seven of these individuals were suffering from cold. A total of 11 nosebleed samples from six donors were collected on tissue paper⁶. From 10 donors the samples of sweat, tear, and urine has been collected on cotton swabs. We have to maintain the distance to avoid skin contact, semen samples are collected from four individuals. Two samples from fertile individuals and other two from vasectomised individuals. After collection we should keep those swabs were air dried and in room temperature in the dark until we used. The collection of 10 samples were collected and stored at -20c and waste materials from those specimens were also taken. Penile swabs were collected by 20 donors using 4N6FLOQ swabs[™] with active drying system (Copan liagnostics)7. Before collecting any samples, consent has taken rom informed voluntary donors.

Marker name	Tissue	[primer] µM	Forward primer (5'–3') Reversed primer (5'–3')	Size (bp)	Dye	Reference
CD93	Blood	0.25	ACCAGTACAGTCCGACAC TTGCTAAGATTCCAGTCCAG	151	NED TM	8
HBB	Blood	0.035	GCACGTGGATCCTGAGAAC ATGGGCCAGCACACAGAC	61	FAM TM	8
HTN3	Saliva	0.2	GCAAAGAGACATCATGGGTA GCCAGTCAAACCTCCATAATC	134	VIC TM	8
STATH	Saliva/nasal mucosa	0.3	TTTGCCTTCATCTTGGCTCT CCCATAACCGAATCTTCCAA	93	FAM TM	8
SEMG1	Seminal fluid	0.8	GGAAGATGACAGTGATCGT CAACTGACACCTTGATATTGG	91	FAM TM	8
PRM1	Spermatozoa	0.3	AGACAAAGAAGTCGCAGAC TACATCGCGGTCTGTACC	146	NED™	8
CYP2B7P1	Vaginal mucosa	0.8	AGTCTACCAGGGATATGGCATG CTATCAGACACTGAGCCTCGTCC	141	VIC®	9
MUC4	Vaginal mucosa	0.8	CTGCTACAATCAAGGCCA AAGGGAAGTTCTAGGTTGAC	88	FAM TM	8
MMP7	Menstrual secretion	0.8	GAACAGGCTCAGGACTATCTC TTAACATTCCAGTTATAGGTAGGCC	107	VIC®	8
MMP10	Menstrual secretion	0.1	GCATCITGCAITCCITGIGCIGITG GGTATTGCTGGGCAAGATCCTTGTT	76	VIC®	9
MMP11	Menstrual secretion	0.4	CAACCGACAGAAGAGGTTCG GAACCGAAGGATCCTGTAGG	71	NED TM	9

Fig. 1: van den Berge & Sijen, 2017.

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

Presumptive tests

After collecting all the specimen presumptive tests for every specimen are required individually. For semen the rapid stain identification series (RSID) is used and to observe the presence of spermatozoa, microscopic analysis has been also conducted. For saliva sample RSID has been also performed. TB testing for blood was performed by transferring biological material to a with water moistened filter paper, to which on drop of tetra bass solution in 10% acidic acid was added10.one drop of barium per oxide solution was added next10. The colour formation will observe according to criteria.

RNA extraction

To extract RNA from biological sample we can proceed with commercial extraction kits.

1. MirvanaTMmi RNA isolation kit.¹¹

For RNA isolation we used the protocol described by lindenbergh et al.12 DNase is used is to degrade. DNA in the process of RNA isolation. The RNA extracts were treated with DNase collected swabs were processed carefully. The swabs from excised from the nosebleed tissues were cut 1cm.2 If the amount of extracted DNA was below 1ng then RNA extracts from ethanol precipitated was prioritize in the reverse transcription. To separate non sperm fraction and sperm fraction, the use of customized mild lysis is more effective. This mild lysis buffer is made up of phosphate buffered saline (PBS). which is composed with 1.6 mg proteinase k and 10µM ribonucleoside vanadyl complex, these two inhibits various ribonucleases, in 50µM of mild lysis buffer the swabs are incubated for 56 c for 20min. After using a QIA shredder column the lysate is separated from carrier material, during centrifugation at 11,000rpm. The non sperm fraction and sperm fraction got separated. Pellet of sperm fraction is washed using 400µL PBS buffer with 10 µM ribonucleoside vanadyl complex and after that it is centrifuged at 13.200rpm for 5min. Then the mirvana mi RNA is isolation kit is used for binding lysis, then the supernatant of non-sperm fraction after centrifugation is treated with lysis buffer and then addition of homogenate additive is placed.

RNA analysis

RNA analysis comprised of CDNA synthesis 19-plex reverse transcriptase PCR product purification and analyse using gene mapper. RNA marker signals help in identification of body fluids. There are several markers for each body fluids. Markers for blood (HBB, CD93, AMICA1) markers for saliva (STATH, HTN3, KRT13) and for mucosa, SPRR2A is used is general. Markers for semen (PRM1 and SEMG1) and for fertile men PRM1 is used. MUC4 for specific vaginal mucosa markers and some markers for menstrual secretion. Different types of marker help to differentiate between different body fluids. The marker for nasal mucosa did not show cross reaction with peripheral, BPIFA1 markers which can be used to differential between peripheral blood and nasal blood. Certain markers don't show the positive results for other body fluids.it discriminates between different type of body fluids.

Result

Through the process of RNA typing, it helps us to differentiate between body fluids. But in case of DNA profiling, it provides the accurate results of the source of the individuals. RNA profiling or typing concludes the cell types present in evidentiary body fluids. The process of RNA typing is followed by clear guidelines. In case of vaginal mucosa due to presence of microbes and bacteria DNA profiling shows false positive result. But in case of examination of skin cells DNA profiling shows more false positive results for whenever skin contact with body fluids, though for detailed cell type information RNA typing is more helpful.

Conclusion

RNA profiling is very recognized method for body fluid identification though it is used as a supplementary method. We can identify large number of body fluids through this process. It helps us to detect the type of body fluids through the RNA marker from a very trace amount. In some of the cases where DNA profiling is responsible as false positive results, there RNA typing comes as a blessing. It is helpful for very degraded body or evidence. In order to obtain accurate results of this method for RNA typing we require to maintain the chain of custody and also unbiased forensic interpretation. But the use of mRNA markers can cause of cross reaction. To identify a human body fluid accurately, we need to consider those cross reaction.

References

- 1. Bhatia, K. N., & Tyagi, M. P. (2014). Truemans: Elementary Biology. Vol. II, 27th edition, Trueman book company-New Delhi.
- Oehmichen M, Zilles K. Postmortem DNA and RNA synthesis. Preliminary studies in human cadavers. Zeitschrift fur Rechtsmedizin. Journal of legal medicine. 1984;91(4):287.
- Bhatia, K. N., & Tyagi, M. P. (2014). Truemans: Elementary Biology. Vol. II, 27th edition, Trueman book company-New Delhi.
- 4. van den Berge M, Bhoelai B, Harteveld J, Matai A, Sijen T. Advancing forensic RNA typing: on nontarget secretions, a nasal mucosa marker, a differential co-extraction protocol and the sensitivity of DNA and RNA profiling. Forensic Science International: Genetics. 2016 Jan 1;20:119-29.
- van den Berge M, Bhoelai B, Harteveld J, Matai A, Sijen T. Advancing forensic RNA typing: on nontarget secretions, a nasal mucosa marker, a differential co-extraction protocol and the sensitivity of DNA and RNA profiling. Forensic Science International: Genetics. 2016 Jan 1;20:119-29.
- 6. van den Berge M, Bhoelai B, Harteveld J, Matai A, Sijen T. Advancing forensic RNA typing: on nontarget secretions, a nasal mucosa marker, a differential co-extraction protocol and the sensitivity of DNA and RNA profiling. Forensic Science International: Genetics. 2016 Jan 1;20:119-29.

- Alexander Lindenbergh, Mirjam de Pagter, Geeta Ramdayal, Mijke Visser, Dmitry Zubakov, Manfred Kayser, TitiaSijen, A multiplex (m)RNA-profiling system for the forensic identification of body fluids and contact traces, Forensic Science International: Genetics, Volume 6, Issue 5,2012, Pages 565-577,
- M. van den Berge, A. Carracedo, I. Gomes, E.A.M. 8. Graham, C. Haas, B. Hjort, P. Hoff-Olsen, O. Maroñas, B. Mevåg, N. Morling, H. Niederstätter, W. Parson, P.M. Schneider, D. Syndercombe Court, A. Vidaki, T. Sijen, A collaborative European exercise on mRNA-based body fluid/skin typing and interpretation of DNA and RNA Science International: results,Forensic Genetics, Volume 10, 2014, Pages 40-48, ISSN 1872-4973.
- Lindenbergh A, Maaskant P, Sijen T. Implementation of RNA profiling in forensic casework. Forensic Science International: Genetics. 2013 Jan 1;7(1):159-66.
- 10. Grabmüller M, Madea B, Courts C. Comparative evaluation of different extraction and quantification methods for forensic RNA analysis. Forensic

Science International: Genetics. 2015 May 1;16:195-202.

- Lindenbergh A, de Pagter M, Ramdayal G, Visser M, Zubakov D, Kayser M, Sijen T. A multiplex (m) RNA-profiling system for the forensic identification of body fluids and contact traces. Forensic Science International: Genetics. 2012 Sep 1;6(5):565-77.
- Zhang Y, Liu B, Shao C, Xu H, Xue A, Zhao Z, Shen Y, Tang Q, Xie J. Evaluation of the inclusion of circular RNAs in mRNA profiling in forensic body fluid identification. International journal of legal medicine. 2018 Jan 1;132(1):43-52.
- Lux C, Schyma C, Madea B, Courts C. Identification of gunshots to the head by detection of RNA in backspatter primarily expressed in brain tissue. Forensic science international. 2014 Apr 1;237:62-9.
- Benschop CC, Wiebosch DC, Kloosterman AD, Sijen T. Post-coital vaginal sampling with nylon flocked swabs improves DNA typing. Forensic science international: genetics. 2010 Feb 1;4(2):115-21.Danapur cant celebrates 250 yrs. https://timeso findia.indiatimes.com/city/patna/Danapur-canttcelebrates-250-yrs/articleshow/48366531.cms

REDKART.NET

(A product of RF Library Services (P) Limited) (Publications available for purchase: Journals, Books, Articles and Single issues) (Date range: 1967 to till date)

The Red Kart is an e-commerce and is a product of RF Library Services (P) Ltd. It covers a broad range of journals, Books, Articles, Single issues (print & Online-PDF) in English and Hindi languages. All these publications are in stock for immediate shipping and online access in case of online.

Benefits of shopping online are better than conventional way of buying.

- 1. Convenience.
- 2. Better prices.
- 3. More variety.
- 4. Fewer expenses.
- 5. No crowds.
- 6. Less compulsive shopping.
- 7. Buying old or unused items at lower prices.
- 8. Discreet purchases are easier.

URL: www.redkart.net

Red Flower Publication (P) Ltd.

Presents its Book Publications for sale

1.	Practical Record Book of Forensic Medicine and Toxicology (2019) <i>By Akhilesh K. Pathak</i>	INR 299/USD23
2.	Skeletal and Structural Organizations of Human Body (2019) <i>By D. R. Singh</i>	INR 659/USD51
3.	Comprehensive Medical Pharmacology (2019) By Ahmad Najmi	INR 599/USD47
4.	Practical Emergency Trauma Toxicology Cases Workbook in Simulation Training (2019) by Vivekanshu Verma, Shiv Rattan Kochar & Devendra Richhariya	INR395/USD31
5.	MCQs in Minimal Access & Bariatric Surgery (2019) by Anshuman Kaushal & Dhruv Kundra	INR450/USD35
6.	Biostatistics Methods for Medical Research (2019) by Sanjeev Sarmukaddam	INR549/USD44
7.	MCQs in Medical Physiology (2019) by Bharati Mehta & Bharti Bhandari Rathore	INR300/USD29
8.	Synopsis of Anesthesia (2019) by Lalit Gupta & Bhavna Gupta	INR1195/USD95
9.	Shipping Economics (2018) by D. Amutha, Ph.D.	INR345/USD27
10.	Breast Cancer: Biology, Prevention and Treatment (2015) by Rana P. Singh, Ph.D. & A. Ramesh Rao, Ph.D.	INR395/USD100
11.	Child Intelligence (2005) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR150/USD50
12.	Pediatric Companion (2001) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR250/USD50

Order from

Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi - 110 091(India) Mobile: 8130750089, Phone: 91-11-45796900, 22754205, 22756995 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in

Micropropagated Plants as Alternative Planting Material to Sugarcane Setts

Nand Lal

How to cite this article: Nand Lal, Micropropagated Plants as Alternative Planting Material to Sugarcane Setts. Indian J Biol 2021; 8(1):27-30.

Author's Affiliations: Professor, Department of Life Sciences, Chhatrapati Shahu Ji Maharaj University, Kanpur 208024, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Corresponding Author: Nand Lal, Professor, Department of Life Sciences, Chhatrapati Shahu Ji Maharaj University, Kanpur 208024, Uttar Pradesh, India.

E-mail: nl_pr@yahoo.co.in

Abstract

Sugarcane (Saccharum officinarum L., Family - Poaceae) is an economically important sugar and energy crop propagated conventionally by stem cuttings (setts). Low propagation rates, long time demand, huge land requirement and potential transmission of pathogens through seed cane from generation to generation are the major constraints of conventional propagation. In vitro propagation (Micropropagation) is the best alternative to overcome such limitations to produce disease-free genetic stock and sufficient amount of planting material in minimum possible time, however, it is a relatively sophisticated technique requiring aseptic conditions and technical skill at each stage viz. mother plant establishment, initiation and establishment of aseptic cultures, multiplication, rooting, and acclimatization. More knowledge is required regarding sensitivity of the micropropagation protocol for microbial contamination and the economical viability to support the conventional propagation. This review aims towards the scope of micropropagation for increasing yield by enhancing varietal life-span and allow the sugar industry to produce sufficient quality planting material within short period of time and cost effective manner.

Keywords: Cane Setts; Micropropagation; Seed Cane; Sachharum Spp; Sugarcane.

Introduction

Sugarcane (Saccharum officinarum L., Family-Poaceae), primarily used for sugar production, has a unique sourcesink system. Its stem sinks store photosynthate as soluble disaccharide, sucrose, which can reach exceptionally high concentrations, up to 650 mM or 18% of stem fresh weight in commercial sugarcane varieties (Inman-Bamber et al., 2011). Lack of rapid multiplication procedures has long been a problem in sugarcane seed production, particularly in expansion of newly released varieties. Almost a decade is required to conduct various steps of sugarcane variety development i.e. hybridization, selection and different evaluation trials. Subsequently, it takes several years for seed multiplication before reaching to commercial plantations. The time spent for seed multiplication is considered a serious economic loss. The new varieties sometimes enter in degenerative phase due to continued contamination by systemic diseases in open fields. Sugarcane is propagated commercially by vegetative method, involving the planting of the stem cuttings of premature cane (about 8 to 12 months old) grown with special care (Sime, 2013). The seed cane that is used as planting material may be either whole stalks or stalk cut up in shorter segments called setts (Garside and Braunack, 2001). The growth of sugarcane has different stages: emergency, tillering, stalk growth, and maturation. The germination is a most critical and foundation event in the plant life to assure a good harvest. It is initially dependent on nutrients and water available within sett till developing its own root system for three weeks under proper conditions, though, the initial growth of sugarcane is influenced by several other internal and external factors such as sett age, cultivar, setts nutrients, temperature, soil aeration; setts position on the stalk and humidity (Sime, 2013).

A cane sett is the main conventionally propagation system for majority of the sugarcane growing countries in the world. In some instances, the buds scooped out of the cane using a bud-chipping machine or knives are used for raising the seed nursery. Higher seed rate of 75,000 three-bud setts per hectare is needed for raising breeder's seed to compensate for germination loss due to heat therapy (Jalaja *et al.*, 2008). In general, nonavailability of quality and true to type planting material of newly released varieties is a major bottleneck in their quick adoption for commercial use, and improving sugarcane productivity. Even the cultivation of well adopted commercial varieties requires availability of quality seed to ensure better cane yield, sugar yield, pathogens and pest-free crop (Flynn *et al.*, 2005). Further, traditional method of cultivation using three-budded setts requires large quantity of seed stalks, which is costly, time consuming and land demanding.

Micropropagation has emerged as most successful and commercially viable facet of plant biotechnology and is being routinely used for propagation of a range of species. The critical test for micropropagation is whether it can occur without introduction of genetic alternations. Although tissue culture work was initiated on sugarcane in 1962 in Hawaii, micropropagation studies remained incomplete for next 20 years. Earlier true shoot apex and axillary bud cultures in sugarcane were treated to be extremely difficult. A number of studies conducted between 1978-93 in France, Brazil and India proved that sugarcane can be propagated by induction of axillary shoot proliferation in cultured shoot meristems (Maretzki, 1987, Lal and Singh, 1994). Lee (1987) in Brazil made comparison of various methods of in vitro propagation in sugarcane and proposed that shoot apex culture was a better technique for propagation due to faster rate of multiplication and genetic stability of propagules.

Micropropagation in sugarcane results in production of planting material that enjoys a number of positive features such as:

- Faster rate of propagation.
- Availability of planting material throughout the year i.e. in all the seasons.
- Production of uniform plants of a selected genotype.
- Uniform cloning of highly heterozygous *Saccharum* complex.
- Elimination of systemic pathogens before planting.
- Preservation of breeding stocks as juvenile plants.
- International exchange of disease-free genotypes avoiding guarantine regulations.
- Transplanting to replace stalk piece (sett) planting.
- Filling of gaps in plant and ratoon crops.
- Requirement of small laboratory space in comparison to open fields.
- Cleaning of commercial varieties deteriorated due to diseases.

Micropropagation method for sugarcane involves following four stages for generating the planting material (Lal and Krishna, 1994):

- Culture establishment (Fig. 1A)
- Shoot (tiller) multiplication (Fig. 1B)
- Rooting of the tillers (Fig. 1C)
- Hardening of the propagules (Fig. 1D)



Fig. 1: Key steps/stages during Sugarcane micropropagation. **A.** Shoot culture establishment, **B.** Shoot multiplication, **C.** Rooting of tillers (plantlets), **D.** Hardening of plantlets.

Details of micropropagation protocol for sugarcane are well documented and being practiced in India, Brazil, Australia, Hawaii, French territories and African countries.

Use of micropropagated plants for raising seed cane crop is well studied in detail in several sugarcane growing countries. Generally, hardened plants of 30-45 days are used for transplantation in field. Hardening procedure for sugarcane propagules is simple and results in survival and establishment rates exceeding 90%. Transplanting of hardened plants in field in favourable season shows almost 100% establishment. The hardened plants are transplanted in pits in levelled soil or furrows without disturbing the soil attached to roots. Trimming of leaves prior to transplantation has been found beneficial for establishment and early induction of tillers. A light irrigation is given to the field after transplantation. A single hardened plant is placed in one pit and appropriate amount of insecticide is also applied in pit. Generally the total fertilizer is applied as top dressing in 3 equal split doses however 1/5th of total fertilizers can be also given as basal dressing. Subsequent field care of micropropagated plants is done in same way as practiced for conventional seed nursery.

Studies conducted in various countries have revealed that micropropagated plants do not undergo genetic alterations and show improved tillering, millable stalks, yield and sugar recovery (Lal, 1996). Incidence of disease is also observed to a minimum level in nurseries raised from micropropagated plants (Flynn *et al.*, 2005).

Considering the potential of micropropagated plants in seed multiplication, it has necessitated the development of appropriate management practice. Lal (1997) observed that plants transplanted in deep pits i.e. pits in furrows show better establishment and vigourous growth. The most important consideration for planting is to decide optimum population and configuration to get economically viable seed nursery different inter- and intra-row spacing for transplanting. Comparison of spacing combinations with conventional sett planting system has shown that micropropagated plants transplanted at a low population i.e. 18,518/ha using inter- and intra-row spacings of 90 and 60 cm, respectively showed higher tillers and millable canes. There is only 20% extra cost required for managing seed cane nursery from micropropagated plants and this is credited to higher cost of the planting material (Jalaja et al., 2008). Other inputs like fertilizers, agrochemicals, irrigation etc. are almost same for the seed nursery raised from either of the planting material. This area requires further attention since simplification of inputs for micropropagated plant based nursery can lower down the cost of cultivation. Another way is to further reduce the cost of planting material which is being attempted by integration of hydroponics at hardening stage and inducing one multiplication cycle outside the culture room. This attempt is likely to help in cost reduction of micropropagated plants. A marginal difference in benefit: cost ratio is observed in sett and micropropagated plant-derived crop and this is easily affordable for seed production purpose, particularly far newly released varieties. Development of appropriate agrotechnology can lead to substitution of setts with micropropagated plants for commercial plantations also and this goal seems not very far. Although higher inputs are required with micropropagated plants, net return/ha is almost same if compared with the sett-derived crop. Considering the net return factor, micropropagated plants can be well accepted by rich farmers.

The feasibility of micropropagation for seed multiplication in sugarcane has led to development of biotechnology units at a number of sugar factories and research institutes. A critical appraisal of the work done at various institutes to make micropropagation more economically viable has shown that tissue culture should be only initially used to produce a sizeable quantity of seed and subsequent multiplication should be done by STP technique (multiplication ration 1:30) and conventional methods (multiplication ratio 1:10).

To bring the feasibility from seed production to commercial plantations for micropropagated plants in sugarcane growing countries following areas require immediate attention:

- Reduction in cost of planting material.
- Development of technology for round the year planting particularly in India and Pakistan.
- Efficient use of inputs to minimize the cost of cultivation.

These challenges can be faced by a co-ordinated effort of tissue culturists, plant physiologists and agronomists. The micropropagated plants are being commonly used for plantations in Australia, Hawaii, Brazil and few Asian countries where the plants are required in low number due to mechanised farming and total cost involved in raising crop from setts and micropropagated plants are almost the same. This is not possible under Indian conditions where more planting material is required due to close inter-row spacings. There seems no scope to reduce the plant population beyond 18,518 per hectare at present. Solution to above mentioned problems can only bring the micropropagated plants within the reach of common farmers. If this happens to be true, micropropagated plants will substitute sett planting and become an ideal planting material for sugarcane cultivation.

References

- Flynn J, Powell G, Perdomo R, Montes G, Quebedeaux K, Comstock J. Comparison of Sugarcane disease Incidence and Yield of Field-Run, Heat-Treated, and Tissue-Culture Based Seedcane. J Amer Soc Sugar Cane Technol 2005; 25: 88-100.
- 2. Garside A, Braunack M. The sugar cane cropping system. In: Manual of cane growing; Hogarth, M. and Allsopp, P. Eds.; Bureau of sugar Experiment stations Indooroopilly, Australia, 2001; pp. 127-139.
- Inman-Bamber G, Jackson P, Bonnett G, Morgan T. "Have we reached peak CCS?," in 33rd Annual Conference of the Australian Society of Sugar Cane Technologists 2011, ed. R. C. Bruce (Red Hook, NY: Curran Associates, Inc.), 2011; pp. 1–9.
- Jalaja N, Neelamathi D, Sreenivasan TV. Micropropagation for quality seed production in sugarcane in Asia and the Pacific. Food and Agric. Organization of the UN, Sugarcane Pub, USA, 2008;

30

pp. 13-60.

- 5. Lal N. Comparative performance of micropropaga -ted plants of sugarcane. Indian J Sugarcane Technol 1996; 11: 29-31.p
- 6. Lal N. Yield performance of sugarcane mericlone transplants under different inter-row and intra-row spacing combinations. Sugar Cane 1997; 6: 12-14.
- Lal N, Krishna R. Tissue culture for pure and disease free seed production in sugarcane. Indian Sugar 1994; 43: 847-848.
- 8. Lal N, Krishna R. Yield comparison in sugarcane crop raised from conventional and mericlone derived seed cane. Indian Sugar 1997; 47: 617-621.

- 9. Lal N, Singh HN. Rapid clonal multiplication of sugarcane through tissue culture. Plant Tissue Culture 1994; 4: 1-7.
- Lee TSG. Micropropagation of Sugarcane (Saccharum sp.). Plant Cell Tissue Organ Culture 1987; 10: 47-55.
- 11. Maretzki A. Tissue Culture: Its prospects and problems. In: Sugarcane Improvement through Breeding; Heinz, D.J. Ed.; Elsevier, Oxford, 1987; pp. 343-384.
- 12. Sime M. The effect of different cane portions on sprouting, growth and yield of sugarcane (Saccharum spp L.). International Journal of Science Research Publication 2013; 3: 338-341.

Red Flower Publication (P) Ltd.

Presents its Book Publications for sale

1.	Drugs in Anesthesia and Critical Care (2019) By Bhavna Gupta, Lalit Gupta	INR 595/USD46
2.	Critical Care Nursing in Emergency Toxicology (2019) By Vivekanshu Verma, Sandhya Shankar Pandey, Atul Bansal	INR 460/USD34
3.	Practical Record Book of Forensic Medicine and Toxicology (2019) By Akhilesh K. Pathak	INR 299/USD23
4.	Skeletal and Structural Organizations of Human Body (2019) <i>By D. R. Singh</i>	INR 659/USD51
5.	Comprehensive Medical Pharmacology (2019) By Ahmad Najmi	INR 599/USD47
6.	Practical Emergency Trauma Toxicology Cases Workbook in Simulation Training (2019) <i>by Vivekanshu Verma, Shiv Rattan Kochar & Devendra Richhariya</i>	INR395/USD31
7.	MCQs in Minimal Access & Bariatric Surgery (2019) by Anshuman Kaushal & Dhruv Kundra	INR450/USD35
8.	Biostatistics Methods for Medical Research (2019) by Sanjeev Sarmukaddam	INR549/USD44
9.	MCQs in Medical Physiology (2019) by Bharati Mehta & Bharti Bhandari Rathore	INR300/USD29
10.	Synopsis of Anesthesia (2019) by Lalit Gupta & Bhavna Gupta	INR1195/USD95
11.	Shipping Economics (2018) by D. Amutha, Ph.D.	INR345/USD27
12.	Breast Cancer: Biology, Prevention and Treatment (2015) by Rana P. Singh, Ph.D. & A. Ramesh Rao, Ph.D.	INR395/USD100
13.	Child Intelligence (2005) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR150/USD50
14.	Pediatric Companion (2001) by Rajesh Shukla, MD.	INR250/USD50

Order from

Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd. 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II Mayur Vihar Phase-I Delhi - 110 091(India) Mobile: 8130750089, Phone: 91-11-45796900, 22754205, 22756995 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in

Indian Journal of Biology / Volume 8 Number 1, January - June 2021

REDKART.NET

(A product of RF Library Services (P) Limited) (Publications available for purchase: Journals, Books, Articles and Single issues) (Date range: 1967 to till date)

The Red Kart is an e-commerce and is a product of RF Library Services (P) Ltd. It covers a broad range of journals, Books, Articles, Single issues (print & Online-PDF) in English and Hindi languages. All these publications are in stock for immediate shipping and online access in case of online.

Benefits of shopping online are better than conventional way of buying.

- 1. Convenience.
- 2. Better prices.
- 3. More variety.
- 4. Fewer expenses.
- 5. No crowds.
- 6. Less compulsive shopping.
- 7. Buying old or unused items at lower prices.
- 8. Discreet purchases are easier.

URL: www.redkart.net

Manuscripts must be prepared in accordance with "Uniform requirements for Manuscripts submitted to Biomedical Journal" developed by international committee of medical Journal Editors

Types of Manuscripts and Limits

Original articles: Up to 3000 words excluding references and abstract and up to 10 references.

Review articles: Up to 2500 words excluding references and abstract and up to 10 references.

Case reports: Up to 1000 words excluding references and abstract and up to 10 references.

Online Submission of the Manuscripts

Articles can also be submitted online from http:// rfppl.co.in/customer_index.php.

I) First Page File: Prepare the title page, covering letter, acknowledgement, etc. using a word processor program. All information which can reveal your identity should be here. use text/rtf/doc/PDF files. Do not zip the files.

2) Article file: The main text of the article, beginning from Abstract till References (including tables) should be in this file. Do not include any information (such as acknowledgement, your name in page headers, etc.) in this file. Use text/rtf/doc/PDF files. Do not zip the files. Limit the file size to 400 Kb. Do not incorporate images in the file. If file size is large, graphs can be submitted as images separately without incorporating them in the article file to reduce the size of the file.

3) Images: Submit good quality color images. Each image should be less than 100 Kb in size. Size of the image can be reduced by decreasing the actual height and width of the images (keep up to 400 pixels or 3 inches). All image formats (jpeg, tiff, gif, bmp, png, eps etc.) are acceptable; jpeg is most suitable.

Legends: Legends for the figures/images should be included at the end of the article file.

If the manuscript is submitted online, the contributors' form and copyright transfer form has to be submitted in original with the signatures of all the contributors within two weeks from submission. Hard copies of the images (3 sets), for articles submitted online, should be sent to the journal office at the time of submission of a revised manuscript. Editorial office: Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd., 48/41-42, DSIDC, Pocket-II, Mayur Vihar Phase-I, Delhi – 110 091, India, Phone: 91-11-22754205, 45796900, 22756995. E-mail: author@rfppl.co.in. Submission page: http://rfppl. co.in/article_submission_system.php?mid=5.

Preparation of the Manuscript

The text of observational and experimental articles should be divided into sections with the headings: Introduction, Methods, Results, Discussion, References, Tables, Figures, Figure legends, and Acknowledgment. Do not make subheadings in these sections.

Title Page

The title page should carry

- 1) Type of manuscript (e.g. Original article, Review article, Case Report)
- The title of the article should be concise and informative;
- 3) Running title or short title not more than 50 characters;
- 4) The name by which each contributor is known (Last name, First name and initials of middle name), with his or her highest academic degree(s) and institutional affiliation;
- The name of the department(s) and institution(s) to which the work should be attributed;
- 6) The name, address, phone numbers, facsimile numbers and e-mail address of the contributor responsible for correspondence about the manuscript; should be mentoined.
- The total number of pages, total number of photographs and word counts separately for abstract and for the text (excluding the references and abstract);
- 8) Source(s) of support in the form of grants, equipment, drugs, or all of these;
- 9) Acknowledgement, if any; and
- If the manuscript was presented as part at a meeting, the organization, place, and exact date on which it was read.

Abstract Page

The second page should carry the full title of the manuscript and an abstract (of no more than 150 words for case reports, brief reports and 250 words for original articles). The abstract should be structured and state the Context (Background), Aims, Settings and Design, Methods and Materials, Statistical analysis used, Results and Conclusions. Below the abstract should provide 3 to 10 keywords.

Introduction

State the background of the study and purpose of the study and summarize the rationale for the study or observation.

Methods

The methods section should include only information that was available at the time the plan or protocol for the study was written such as study approach, design, type of sample, sample size, sampling technique, setting of the study, description of data collection tools and methods; all information obtained during the conduct of the study belongs in the Results section.

Reports of randomized clinical trials should be based on the CONSORT Statement (http:// www. consort-statement. org). When reporting experiments on human subjects, indicate whether the procedures followed were in accordance with the ethical standards of the responsible committee on human experimentation (institutional or regional) and with the Helsinki Declaration of 1975, as revised in 2000 (available at http://www.wma. net/e/policy/l7-c_e.html).

Results

Present your results in logical sequence in the text, tables, and illustrations, giving the main or most important findings first. Do not repeat in the text all the data in the tables or illustrations; emphasize or summarize only important observations. Extra or supplementary materials and technical details can be placed in an appendix where it will be accessible but will not interrupt the flow of the text; alternatively, it can be published only in the electronic version of the journal.

Discussion

Include summary of key findings (primary outcome measures, secondary outcome measures, results as they relate to a prior hypothesis); Strengths and limitations of the study (study question, study design, data collection, analysis and interpretation); Interpretation and implications in the context of the totality of evidence (is there a systematic review to refer to, if not, could one be reasonably done here and now?, What this study adds to the available evidence, effects on patient care and health policy, possible mechanisms)? Controversies raised by this study; and Future research directions (for this particular research collaboration, underlying mechanisms, clinical research). Do not repeat in detail data or other material given in the Introduction or the Results section.

References

List references in alphabetical order. Each listed reference should be cited in text (not in alphabetic order), and each text citation should be listed in the References section. Identify references in text, tables, and legends by Arabic numerals in square bracket (e.g. [10]). Please refer to ICMJE Guidelines (http://www.nlm.nih.gov/bsd/uniform_ requirements.html) for more examples.

Standard journal article

[1] Flink H, Tegelberg Å, Thörn M, Lagerlöf F. Effect of oral iron supplementation on unstimulated salivary flow rate: A randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial. J Oral Pathol Med 2006; 35: 540–7.

[2] Twetman S, Axelsson S, Dahlgren H, Holm AK, Källestål C, Lagerlöf F, et al. Caries-preventive effect of fluoride toothpaste: A systematic review. Acta Odontol Scand 2003; 61: 347–55.

Article in supplement or special issue

[3] Fleischer W, Reimer K. Povidone-iodine antisepsis. State of the art. Dermatology 1997; 195 Suppl 2: 3–9.

Corporate (collective) author

[4] American Academy of Periodontology. Sonic and ultrasonic scalers in periodontics. J Periodontol 2000; 71: 1792–801.

Unpublished article

[5] Garoushi S, Lassila LV, Tezvergil A, Vallittu PK. Static and fatigue compression test for particulate filler composite resin with fiber-reinforced composite substructure. Dent Mater 2006.

Personal author(s)

[6] Hosmer D, Lemeshow S. Applied logistic regression, 2nd edn. New York: Wiley-Interscience; 2000.

Chapter in book

[7] Nauntofte B, Tenovuo J, Lagerlöf F. Secretion and composition of saliva. In: Fejerskov O,

Kidd EAM, editors. Dental caries: The disease and its clinical management. Oxford: Blackwell Munksgaard; 2003. pp 7–27.

No author given

[8] World Health Organization. Oral health surveys - basic methods, 4th edn. Geneva: World Health Organization; 1997.

Reference from electronic media

[9] National Statistics Online – Trends in suicide by method in England and Wales, 1979–2001. www. statistics.gov.uk/downloads/theme_health/HSQ 20.pdf (accessed Jan 24, 2005): 7–18. Only verified references against the original documents should be cited. Authors are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of their references and for correct text citation. The number of reference should be kept limited to 20 in case of major communications and 10 for short communications.

More information about other reference types is available at www.nlm.nih.gov/bsd/uniform_ requirements.html, but observes some minor deviations (no full stop after journal title, no issue or date after volume, etc.).

Tables

Tables should be self-explanatory and should not duplicate textual material.

Tables with more than 10 columns and 25 rows are not acceptable.

Table numbers should be in Arabic numerals, consecutively in the order of their first citation in the text and supply a brief title for each.

Explain in footnotes all non-standard abbreviations that are used in each table.

For footnotes use the following symbols, in this sequence: *, ¶, †, ‡‡,

Illustrations (Figures)

Graphics files are welcome if supplied as Tiff, EPS, or PowerPoint files of minimum 1200x1600 pixel size. The minimum line weight for line art is 0.5 point for optimal printing.

When possible, please place symbol legends below the figure instead of the side.

Original color figures can be printed in color at the editor's and publisher's discretion provided the author agrees to pay. Type or print out legends (maximum 40 words, excluding the credit line) for illustrations using double spacing, with Arabic numerals corresponding to the illustrations.

Sending a revised manuscript

submitting a revised While manuscript, contributors are requested to include, along with single copy of the final revised manuscript, a photocopy of the revised manuscript with the changes underlined in red and copy of the comments with the point-to-point clarification to each comment. The manuscript number should be written on each of these documents. If the manuscript is submitted online, the contributors' form and copyright transfer form has to be submitted in original with the signatures of all the contributors within two weeks of submission. Hard copies of images should be sent to the office of the journal. There is no need to send printed manuscript for articles submitted online.

Reprints

Journal provides no free printed, reprints, however a author copy is sent to the main author and additional copies are available on payment (ask to the journal office).

Copyrights

The whole of the literary matter in the journal is copyright and cannot be reproduced without the written permission.

Declaration

A declaration should be submitted stating that the manuscript represents valid work and that neither this manuscript nor one with substantially similar content under the present authorship has been published or is being considered for publication elsewhere and the authorship of this article will not be contested by any one whose name(s) is/are not listed here, and that the order of authorship as placed in the manuscript is final and accepted by the co-authors. Declarations should be signed by all the authors in the order in which they are mentioned in the original manuscript. Matters appearing in the Journal are covered by copyright but no objection will be made to their reproduction provided permission is obtained from the Editor prior to publication and due acknowledgment of the source is made.

Approval of Ethics Committee

We need the Ethics committee approval letter from an Institutional ethical committee (IEC) or an institutional review board (IRB) to publish your Research article or author should submit a statement that the study does not require ethics approval along with evidence. The evidence could either be consent from patients is available and there are no ethics issues in the paper or a letter from an IRB stating that the study in question does not require ethics approval.

Abbreviations

Standard abbreviations should be used and be spelt out when first used in the text. Abbreviations should not be used in the title or abstract.

Checklist

- Manuscript Title
- · Covering letter: Signed by all contributors
- Previous publication/ presentations mentioned, Source of funding mentioned
- Conflicts of interest disclosed

Authors

- Middle name initials provided.
- Author for correspondence, with e-mail address provided.
- Number of contributors restricted as per the instructions.
- Identity not revealed in paper except title page (e.g. name of the institute in Methods, citing previous study as 'our study')

Presentation and Format

- Double spacing
- Margins 2.5 cm from all four sides
- Title page contains all the desired information. Running title provided (not more than 50 characters)
- Abstract page contains the full title of the manuscript
- Abstract provided: Structured abstract provided for an original article.
- Keywords provided (three or more)
- Introduction of 75-100 words

- Headings in title case (not ALL CAPITALS). References cited in square brackets
- References according to the journal's instructions

Language and grammar

- Uniformly American English
- Abbreviations spelt out in full for the first time. Numerals from 1 to 10 spelt out
- Numerals at the beginning of the sentence spelt out

Tables and figures

- No repetition of data in tables and graphs and in text.
- Actual numbers from which graphs drawn, provided.
- Figures necessary and of good quality (color)
- Table and figure numbers in Arabic letters (not Roman).
- Labels pasted on back of the photographs (no names written)
- Figure legends provided (not more than 40 words)
- Patients' privacy maintained, (if not permission taken)
- Credit note for borrowed figures/tables provided
- Manuscript provided on a CDROM (with double spacing)

Submitting the Manuscript

- Is the journal editor's contact information current?
- Is the cover letter included with the manuscript? Does the letter:
- 1. Include the author's postal address, e-mail address, telephone number, and fax number for future correspondence?
- 2. State that the manuscript is original, not previously published, and not under concurrent consideration elsewhere?
- 3. Inform the journal editor of the existence of any similar published manuscripts written by the author?
- Mention any supplemental material you are submitting for the online version of your article. Contributors' Form (to be modified as applicable and one signed copy attached with the manuscript)

36

STATEMENT ABOUT OWNERSHIP AND OTHER PARTICULARS " Journal of Psychiatric Nursing " (See Rule 8)

1. Place of Publication	:	Delhi
2. Periodicity of Publication	:	Quarterly
3. Printer's Name	:	Dinesh Kumar Kashyap
Nationality	:	Indian
Address	:	3/259, Trilokpuri, Delhi-91
4. Publisher's Name	:	Dinesh Kumar Kashvap
Nationality		Indian
Address	:	3/259, Trilokpuri, Delhi-91
5 Editor's Name	:	Dinesh Kumar Kashyap
Nationality	:	Indian
Address	:	3/259, Trilokpuri, Delhi-91
6. Name & Address of Individuals	:	Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd.
who own the newspaper and particulars of	:	41/48, DSIDC, Pocket-II
shareholders holding more than one per cen	t	Mayur Vihar, Phase-1, Delhi-91
of the total capital		

I, **Dinesh Kumar Kashyap**, hereby declare that the particulars given above are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Sd/-

(Dinesh Kumar Kashyap)

Red Flower Publication Pvt. Ltd.

CAPTURE YOUR MARKET

For advertising in this journal

Please contact:

International print and online display advertising sales Advertisement Manager Phone: 91-11-22756995, 22754205, 45796900, Cell: +91-9821671871 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in

Recruitment and Classified Advertising

Advertisement Manager Phone: 91-11-22756995, 22754205, 45796900, Cell: +91-9821671871 E-mail: sales@rfppl.co.in